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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The present condition is essentially the same as when the 
original building was constructed in 1898. It is made of 
native granite blocks about 18" square. It consists of one 
large, high-ceilinged room, which contains counters around 
the edges, and a square counter enclosed area in the center 
for the proprietor and the cash register. There is a post 
office area partitioned off and fronted by a barred window 
and the post office boxes. There is also a second floor 
which is no longer usable. It is a square building with a 
flat roof. The floors are the original wooden floors.

The building measures 40 feet by 60 feet and has a half- 
basement used for storage. It was constructed with a foot 
thick fire-wall around the roof, which is flat.

The ceilings are 14 feet high with pressed tin. Most of 
the store's equipment is original and practically no re­ 
modeling has been done since it was built.

The store front is characterized by rounded arch door entry 
and windows on the first floor with radiating voussoirs. 
The second floor windows are flat with plain lintels and 
sills. The name of the store and the data appear above the 
door. The entry door is a plain doubleleaf affair with 
windows at a 45 degree angle in the embrasure and a mullion 
above. The chimney for the traditional pot-bellied stove 
is situated to the left rear.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE ,„„

Green MercantiTe^s main historical significance evolves from 
the fact that it is one of the few general stores still 
operating under circumstances very similar to those existing 
at its inception. It exists as the only general merchandis­ 
ing store serving its small mountain community. It provides 
essentially the same categories of items—food, dry goods, 
hardware and home items, some farm items. It provides the 
same basic services to the cummunity—a community gathering 
place and center for notices, and a post office. It is 
operated by the grandson of the original owner. Other 
general stores exist as museums and tourist attractions. 
Green Mercantile operates for residents of the community, 
much as it has always functioned.

John W. Green Sr. went to the small mountain community of 
Buffalo creek in the 1880s. The small town had evolved:as 
a result of the ranching, lumbering and mining activities 
in the area. The narrow gauge railroad reached Buffalo 
Creek about 1878, when Governor Evan's Denver, South park 
and pacific Railroad was being constructed to corner the 
market on the mineral resources between South park and 
Denver. After that it also served as a fisherman-tourist 
area, and as a terminus for supplies for construction of 
Cheesman Dam.

John W. Green, Sr., a native of Virginia, arrived in Buffalo 
in 1879. He eventually acquired the first hotel in Buffalo 
from its proprietor, James Miller, and continued to operate 
it as a hotel and as a general merchandise store until it 
burned down in a large general fire that burned many of the 
wooden buildings of the town in 1897. He worked in Saw Mill 
until he had enough to purchase a hotel. „ Green rebuilt 
only the store in 1898. He contracted with Seerie invest­ 
ment company to replace the wooden structure with a fire­ 
proof building of native granite building blocks. The hugh 
blocks were hoisted into place by a construction outfit 
consisting of six men, a team of mules, and a jim pole.
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Mr. Green was also active in politics, bought up quantities of 
real estate, and was appointed postmaster by Cleveland in 1886. 
The position passed to his son John Green, Jr. in 1914 and 
remains in the family to this day. The post office is also an 
integral part of the store. At one time, the second floor of 
the store served as a community meeting place, and a recreation­ 
al center where dances were held.

It exists today in essentially the same condition, except that 
the second floor is no longer safe and usable. Many of the 
fixtures, such as the "ice box;1 well eroded butcher block, 
cheese container, display cases presented to the proprietor 
by various salesmen, post office area including the original 
window and post office boxes, are still in use. There is even 
an ornate telephone booth installed in the store for the first 
telephone in the area, which the telephone company never re­ 
trieved. The original cash register is still in use—causing 
some problems for the proprietor with today's prices, since 
it does not register sales of more than $1.00. The well-worn 
wooden floors have not seen wax in many years if ever. The 
ceiling is pressed tin. Electricity has been installed, but 
the whole store is still heated by a wood burning stove, with 
the assistance of a space heater.
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